
HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Licensing Sub-Committee (1) 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Thursday 26th January, 2017 

   

Time: 
 

 10.00 am 

   

Venue: 
 

 Rooms 5, 6 & 7 - 17th Floor, Westminster City Hall, 64 
Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6 QP 

   

Members: 
 

 Councillors: 
 

 

  Tim Mitchell (Chairman) 
Heather Acton 
Jan Prendergast 

 

 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda 
 
Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the 
ground floor reception at City Hall from 9.00am.  If you have 
a disability and require any special assistance please 
contact the Committee Officer (details listed below) in 
advance of the meeting. 
 

   

T
 

 An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  If you require 
any further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Jonathan Deacon. 
 
Email: jdeacon@westminster.gov.uk  Tel: 020 7641 2783 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Director of Law in advance of the meeting please. 
 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To report any changes to the membership. 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of any personal or 
prejudicial interests in matters on this agenda. 
 

 

 Licensing Applications for Determination 
 

 

1.   THE WELLINGTON CLUB, 116A KNIGHTSBRIDGE, SW1 (Pages 1 - 
46) 

 App 

No 

Ward/ 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

1. Knightsbrid

ge and 

Belgravia 

Ward / not 

in 

cumulative 

impact 

area 

The 

Wellington 

Club, 116A 

Knightsbrid

ge, SW1 

New 16/11875/LIPN 
 

 

 
 

 

2.   PREMIER INN, 90-104 BERWICK STREET, W1 (Pages 47 - 
80) 

 App 

No 

Ward/ 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

2. West End 

Ward / 

Premier 

Inn, 90-

New 16/11235/LIPN 
 

 

 



 
 

 

West End 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

104 

Berwick 

Street, W1 

 
 

3.   THE LEXINGTON, 34 LEXINGTON STREET, W1 (Pages 81 - 
198) 

 App 

No 

Ward/ 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

3. West End 

Ward / 

West End 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

The 

Lexington, 

34 

Lexington 

Street, W1 

New 16/12033/LIPN 
 

 

 
 

 

4.   38 ST JOHN'S WOOD TERRACE, NW8 (Pages 199 - 
224) 

 App 

No 

Ward/ 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

4. Abbey 

Road 

Ward / not 

in 

cumulative 

impact 

area 

38 St 

John's 

Wood 

Terrace, 

NW8 

New 16/11417/LIPN 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
Charlie Parker 
Chief Executive 
20 January 2017 
 



 
 

 

In considering applications for premises licences under the Licensing Act 2003, the sub-
committee is advised of the following: 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The City of Westminster statement of licensing policy applies to all applications where 
relevant representations have been made. The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to 
have regard to the City of Westminster statement of Licensing Policy and the guidance 
issued by the Secretary of state under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
GUIDANCE CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The Licensing Authority is required to have regard to any guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
 
CORE HOURS WHEN CUSTOMERS ARE PERMITTED TO BE ON THE PREMISES  
(As set out in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2011)  
 
•   For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises: 

 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight 
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30 
Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30. 

 
• For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises: 

 
Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00 
Sundays: 10:00 to 22:30. 

 
•   For premises for the provision of other licensable activities: 
 

Friday and Saturday: 09.00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09.00 to midnight 
Other Sundays: 09.00 to 22.30 
Monday to Thursday: 09.00 to 23.30. 

 



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

 
   

Date:  26 January 2017 
   

Licensing Ref No:  16/11875/LIPN - New Premises Licence 
   

Title of Report:  The Wellington Club - Shadow Licence 
116A Knightsbridge 
London 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  Knightsbridge And Belgravia 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 1

Agenda Item 1



 
1. Application 

 
1-A Applicant and premises 

 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

1 November 2016 

Applicant: Quaver Limited 
 

Premises: The Wellington Club - Shadow Licence 
 

Premises address: The Wellington Club 
116A Knightsbridge 
London 
SW1X 7PL 
 

Ward: 
 

Knightsbridge 
and Belgravia  

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

None  

Premises description: 
 

The premises is currently operating as a Public House.  
 
This is an application for a Shadow Licence.  
 

Premises licence history: 
 

The premises does currently have a Premises Licence 
(ref: 16/06685/LIPT).  
 

Applicant submissions: None submitted.  
 

 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 
 

Live Music  Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors  
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 

End: 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of trade on New Years Eve to the start of 
Trade on New Years Day.  

 

Recorded Music  Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors  
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 

End: 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of trade on New Years Eve to the start of 
Trade on New Years Day. 

 
 
 
 

page 2



Performance of Dance  Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors  
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 

End: 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of trade on New Years Eve to the start of 
Trade on New Years Day. 

 

Anything of a Similar Description to 
Live music, Recorded Music and Dance 

Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors  
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 

End: 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of trade on New Years Eve to the start of 
Trade on New Years Day. 

 

Late Night Refreshment: Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors  
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 

End: 01:30 01:30 01:30 01:30 01:30 01:30 01:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

New years Eve from 23:00hrs to 05:00hrs on New Years 
Day.  

 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

Both  

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 12:00 

End: 01:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 00:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of trade on New Years Eve to the start of 
Trade on New Years Day. 

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 09:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 09:00 

End: 01:30 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 01:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of trade on New Years Eve to the start of 
Trade on New Years Day. 

Adult Entertainment:  Not applicable. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 3



2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service  

Representative:  PC Adam Deweltz 
 

Received:  
 

7th November 2016 

  
With reference to the above, I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, as a 
Responsible Authority, will be making a representation against this application.   
 
This is a new application which seeks hours past those of Westminster core. It is our 
belief that if granted the application would undermine the Licensing Objectives in 
relation to The Prevention of Crime and Disorder. 
 
Following the submission of this representation, the MET Police have confirmed 
that the Crime Stats for the premises are very low and as a result they have 
withdrawn their representation.  
 
 
 

2-B Other Persons 
 

Name: Mr James Legg 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

LCM Group 
3 Orbis Wharf  
Bridges Court Road 
London 
SW11 3GW  

Received:  
 

29th November 2016  

 
1. We write to make a representation ("objection") on behalf of the 

Wellington Court RTM Company Limited ("RTM") - address seen above. 
 

2. The objection is made in relation to the application made by Quaver Limited 
for a new premises license for The Wellington Club, 116A Knightsbridge, 
London SW1X 7PL ("the Club"). 

 
3. The RTM represents 45 residents living in Wellington Court, which 

comprises of residential flats and the Club. 
 

4. The RTM residents reside in the same building as the Club, which is on 
the ground floor and basement. The RTM and its residents a re therefore in 
the vicinity. 

 
5.   Please find attached a written statement from the RTM with the names of all 

the residents signed by the management committee, all of whom reside in 

Wellington Court (Annex 1 of the Schedule). 

page 4



 
6. Documents in support of these representations are set out in the Schedule 

attached hereto. 
 

Reasons for the Objection 
 

7.   The objection is made due to the unacceptable impact granting the 

license will have on the residents of Wellington Court. The Club has 

historically affected the residents' quality of life. 
 

8.   Further, granting the new license is not appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives, which are addressed below 

 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

9. The noise emanating from the Club already reaches an unacceptable level 
late at night. The level of  noise (including loud music) after midnight is not 
acceptable, particularly in a residential area. 

 

10. The patrons of the Club, during the trading period, use the surrounding 
area for urinating and vomiting. This is a regular occurrence, particularly 
on Friday and Saturday nights. 

  
11. Further, the patrons of the Club leave the premises well after the trading 

hours (post 2am). This results in a crowd of drunk youths aggregating 

around the Club entrance, which is intimidating and a nuisance. The main 

nuisance is caused by yelling, swearing, fighting and obstruction of 

access to the building . 

 
12. The police have been called to attend on numerous occasions, an 

example of such a time is in Annex 5 of the Schedule. 
 

13. Granting the new license will exacerbate this public nuisance. 
 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder  
 

14. This issue has been touched on above. 
 

15. The patrons of the Club already cause crime and disorder by: 
 

a. a. Being drunk and disorderly near the Club and Wellington Court. 
 

b. b. By urinating and vomiting in a public place. 
 

c. By yelling, swearing and fighting as they leave the Club, this         
has caused the police to be called. 

 
                         d. By congregating in large groups when they leave the Club,     

which often blocks the residents access to the building in 

which they live - this has caused the police to be called. 

 
16. Granting the new license will exacerbate this problem. 

 

page 5



Public Safety  
 

17. The RTM has the upmost concern for the safety of its residents and the 
public. 

 
18. The constant disturbance from the Club not only reduces our residents' 

quality of life, but also leaves them with concerns for their safety. This is 

unacceptable in any area and our residents also pay premium prices to 

live at Wellington Court. 
 

19. Causing residents to be blocked from the entrance of their building late at 
night is unsafe. 

 
20. Having crowd s of drunk users of the Club lingering outside a residential 

area is not just a nuisance it's also unsafe. 
 

21. Granting the new license will exacerbate this problem. 
 
Conclusion 
 

22. The issues described above stem mainly from loud music, alcohol 
consumption and people leaving the Club in the early hours of the 
morning. 

 
23. The new license seeks to increase these activities with insufficient 

measures to prevent noise, disturbance and safety issues. 
 

24. The new license will not promote the licensing objectives, but will increase 
the issues described and reduce further the quality of lives of the 
residents a t Wellington Court. 

 

25. Therefore, the RTM objects to the new licence and requests it be rejected. 
 

26. Further, the RTM puts forwards conditions that should be put in place 
to reduce the above issues: 

 
a. The Club must be fitted with adequate soundproofing to reduce 

noise emanating from the Club. This needs to be put in place in 

the Club premises and at the Club's expense. 
 

b. A restriction on the Club's licensable activities so it does not trade 
beyond midnight. 

 
c. Crowd control/ security to reduce the anti-social behaviour of 

the patrons leaving the Club late at night (vomiting, urinating, 

swearing, fighting etc) . 
 

27. Thank you f or taking the time to consider our objection, which we stress 
is not mad e lightly or to cause inconvenience. The issues described are 

causing serious anguish to the RTM and its residents. 
 
Mr Legg has also provided a link to CCTV footage and further information which 
can be found at Appendix 6 
 

page 6



 Name: Miss Najy Nasser 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

199 Knightsbridge 
London 
SW7 1RH  

Received:  
 

29th November 2016 

I would like to object to this application. When the Wellington nightclub was open in the 
past, it resulted in nocturnal disturbance at night, with drunk people speaking very 
loudly, fighting or arguing, revving up engines, right under my children's bedrooms. The 
result was my children would be woken up in the middle of the night scared and 
exhausted and unable to go back to sleep. This causes significant problems as our 
children are then tired the next day, unable to focus at school and my wife and I will not 
have had a good night sleep either making the next day more challenging. 
Loud disturbance at night interferes with our right to quiet enjoyment of our family home 
and for a family to have proper rest before the next day. 
 

 Name: Mr Francis Corbesier 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

199 Knightsbridge 
London 
SW71RH  

Received:  
 

29th November 2016  

There have been numerous issues surrounding this site in the past with rowdy 
behaviour late at night, various anti-social behaviour including fighting in the streets , 
people drinking and throwing empty bottles/glasses int he street, drugs, and noise 
issues related to exit of the customer late at night and their noisy vehicle movements. 
I wish the Westminster City Council licensing committee to consider my objection which 
is the same for every neighbour that this new application should be considered as a risk 
for all of us in terms of : 
 
- Prevention of crime and disorder 
- Public safety 
- Prevention of public nuisance 
- Protection of children from harm 
 

 Name: Mrs Olivia Thornton 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

20 Rutland St 
London 
SW7 1EF  

Received:  
 

29th November 2016  

This sort of establishment should be limited to a recreational district like Soho, not 
lowering the social scene of this smart residential area. Respectable families with 
children live nearby. 
 
 
 
 
 

page 7



 Name: Ms Caroline Lemaire 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

Apartment 122 
The Knightsbridge Apartments, 199 
Knightsbridge 
London 
SW7 1RH  

Received:  
 

29th november 2016  

I object to the application of The Wellington nightclub renewing their premises license. 
In the past, it resulted in many disturbances at night which would include disruptive 
people shouting in the streets, fighting and on many occasions the use of abusive 
language - having three young children woken up by this at unreasonable hours 
affected them and they would struggle to get back to sleep because of the continuous 
loud interruptions which were occurring outside. The impact on the children could be felt 
the next day with difficulty to get through the school day as they were exhausted. This is 
a residential area in which families ought to have rest at night both during weekdays 
and weekends. 
 

 Name: Dr Therese Nasser 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

10 Lancelot Place 
London 
SW7 1DR  

Received:  
 

29th November 2016 

I strongly object to this new licence. This nightclub has already caused a lot of nuisance 
and anti-social behaviour in the past (fights, noise, littering of the street). We already 
have a lot of street littering and evening noise with Zuma and the pub on Raphael 
Street. 
 
I am afraid this club which opens very late will attract more problems in the area and will 
ruin the fine balance there is between permitting people to have fun and letting local 
residents enjoy a good night and living in a safe area. 
 
There are also many children in this area. I really think that there should not be too 
many nightclubs. 
 
I sincerely hope you will reject the application for this club. 
 

 Name: Ian Fergusson 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

Turley 
The Charlotte Building 
17 Gresse Street 
London 
W1T 1QL  

Received:  
 

29th November 2016 

 
We are instructed by KRMC to object to the above application. 
 
 KRMC represents the residents of 199 Knightsbridge which is occupied by over 200 

page 8



families, approximately 500 adults and children. 199 Knightsbridge is located on the 
opposite side of Knightsbridge from the subject site and is affected by its activities. 
 
  
License Sought 
 
The application suggests the Wellington Club, or ‘The Welly’ as per its website, has a 
‘main restaurant use’, with ancillary music and dancing. The Club’s capacity is identified 
as 180 (ground floor-80,basement-100). Information online indicates the basement has 
hosted music and dancing, with food served on the ground floor. The main use 
accordingly appears to be a nightclub. This accords with online reviews. 
 
  
The application also refers to the Wellington Club as a ‘private members’ club’ and sets 
a condition that there shall be ‘no admission to membership of the Club within 48 hours 
of making a written application for membership’. Reviews online indicate this 
requirement has been waived in the past. 
 
  
The proposed license will allow for up to 180 people to exit the premises at closing time 
(generally 02:00). The activity (and the scale of it) that this has and would cause is a 
concern to KRMC. 
 
 Objection 
 
The Wellington Club has, in recent years, been an un-neighbourly presence in 
Knightsbridge. The license sought would create public nuisance and risk of crime and 
disorder and to public safety. 
 
 
Residents of 199 Knightsbridge have witnessed fights on the street outside of the Club 
and been disturbed by cars revving engines in the early hours and patrons remaining in 
the vicinity and making noise after closing time. 
 
 
The premises license seeks opening hours that exceed the Council’s ‘Core Hours’. It is 
considered that, if this license is granted, given the nature of the proposed use and for 
the reasons outlined above, the hours of operation should be restricted to the Core 
Hours and on-going monitoring of harm undertaken by the Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 9



 Name: Robert Hays 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

General Manager 
Lancelot Place Knightsbridge  
10 Lancelot Place 
London  
SW7 1DR 
  

Received:  
 

29th November 2016  

1. I write to make a representation ("objection") on behalf of the residents at 10 
Lancelot Place ("10LP") – address seen above. 

 
2. The objection is made in relation to the application made by Quaver 

Limited for a new premises license for The Wellington Club, 116A 
Knightsbridge, London SW1X 7PL ("the Club"). 

 

3. 10LP represents residents living in 10 Lancelot Place, which comprises of 53 
residential flats. 

 
REASONS FOR THE OBJECTION 
 

4. Further,  granting  the  new  license  is  not  appropriate  for  the  promotion  of  
the  licensing objectives, which are addressed below. 

 
Prevention of public nuisance 

 

5. The noise emanating from the Club already reaches an unacceptable level 
late at night. The level of noise (including loud music) after midnight is not 
acceptable, particularly in a residential area. 

 

6. The patrons of the Club, during the trading period, use the surrounding area for 
urinating and vomiting. This is a regular occurrence, particularly on Friday and 
Saturday nights. 

 

7. Further, the patrons of the Club leave the premises well after the trading 
hours (post 2am). This results in a crowd of drunken youths aggregating 
around the Club entrance, which is intimidating and a nuisance. The main 
nuisance is caused by yelling, swearing, fighting and obstruction around the 
building and the surrounding area. There are many routes for the crowds to 
disperse by using Trevor Square and the alley ways surrounding 10 Lancelet 
Place moving into Brompton Road area and causing much disruption. 

 

8. Granting the new license will exacerbate this public nuisance. 
 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

9. The patrons of the Club have already cause crime and disorder by: 
 

a. Being drunk and disorderly near the Club and surrounding residential 
areas. 

 

b. By urinating and vomiting in a public place. 
 

c. By yelling, swearing and fighting as they leave the Club. 

page 10



 

d. By congregating in large groups when they leave the Club and 
making their way through to Brompton Road using various alley ways 
and routes near 10 Lancelot. 

 

10. Granting the new license will exacerbate this problem. 
 
Public Safety 

11. 10LP has the up most concern for the safety of its residents and the public. 
 

12. The constant disturbance from the Club not only reduces all local residents' 
quality of life, but also leaves them with concerns for their safety, especially 
late at night. This is unacceptable in any area. 

 

13. Having crowds of drunk users of the Club lingering outside a in the vicinity of 
residential area is not just a nuisance it's also unsafe. 

 

14. Granting the new license will exacerbate this problem. 
 

CONCLUSION 
 

15. The issues described above stem mainly from loud music, alcohol 
consumption and people leaving the Club in the early hours of the morning. 

 

16. The new license seeks to increase these activities with insufficient measures 
to prevent noise, disturbance and safety issues. 

 

17. The  new  license  will  not  promote  the  licensing  objectives,  but  will  
increase  the  issues described and reduce further the quality of lives of the 
surrounding residents near the club. 

 

18. Therefore, 10LP objects to the new licence and requests it be rejected. 
 

 Name: Mrs Caroline Stoclin 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

10 Lancelot Place 
London 
SW7 1DR  

Received:  
 

20th November 2016 

I strongly object to this application. 
 
- Knightsbridge is a residential area where there are already enough places to go out. 
There are children, elderly people who live and work in this area. 
 
- This is a night club which will open very late until 2 o'clock. They also state that they 
will perform dance and other things. As they serve alcohol and stay open late at night I 
am VERY worried as to what kind of activity this club will have. 
 
- Please object to this licence as I am just trying to raise my 3 children and I want a 
quiet area to raise them. 
 
 
 

page 11



 Name: Rana Almudhaf 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

Flat 6, 
 Albert Gate Court,  
124 Knightsbridge,  
London SW1X 7PE  

Received:  
 

28th November 2016 

I am the owner of Flat 6, Albert Gate Court, 124 Knightsbridge, London SW1X  7PE. 
 
I have received a Notification of a New Premises Licence Application Under The 
Licensing Act 2003. The application is for The Wellington Club. 
 
This club is directly next door to my residential building. 
 
I have suffered for many years as a result of disturbances emanating from the patrons 
of this nightclub. I have been forced to call the Council's noise abatement team many 
times over the years. The nuisance is caused by the gathering of the patrons outside 
the club through the night, to smoke. They are very loud throughout.  
 
There have been numerous instances of criminal behaviour. The police have been 
called a number of times, leading to arrests.  
 
All this has made our lives as neighbours very difficult.  
 
The new application seeks to reopen the club for even more days. I would like to 
register my objection to this application. 
 

 Name: Mr Robert Crichton 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

No 5, Trevor Square, 
London 
SW7 1DT  

Received:  
 

29th November 2016 

Re: Representation to application reference: 16/11875/LIPM  
 
1. We write to make a representation ("objection")  
 
2. The objection is made in relation to the application made by Quaver Limited for a new 
premises license for The Wellington Club, 116A Knightsbridge, London SW1X 7PL ("the 
Club"). 
 
REASONS FOR THE OBJECTION 
 

2. 3. The objection is made due to the unacceptable impact granting the license will have 
on the residents of the neighbourhood. The Club has historically affected the residents' 
quality of life. 

3.  
4. 4. Further, granting the new license is not appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 

objectives, which are addressed below. 
5.  

Prevention of public nuisance 

page 12



 
6. 5. The noise emanating from the Club already reaches an unacceptable level late at 

night. The level of noise (including loud music) after midnight is not acceptable, 
particularly in a residential area. 
 

7. 6. The patrons of the Club, during the trading period, use the surrounding area for 
urinating and vomiting. This is a regular occurrence, particularly on Friday and Saturday 
nights. 

8.  
7. Further, the patrons of the Club leave the premises well after the trading hours (post 
2am). This results in a crowd of drunk youths aggregating around the Club entrance. 
 

  
 

3. Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 

Policy HRS1 applies  (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below 
in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies. 

 

Policy PB1 applies: 

 

Applications will only be granted if it can be demonstrated that 
the proposal meets the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1. 

 

 
4. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

Appendix 6  Additional information from Mr Legg  
 

 
 

page 13



 
Report author: Miss Heidi Lawrance 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
 
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

March 2015 

4 Application Form 1st November 2016  

5 Representation – PC Adam Deweltz       7th December 2016  

6 Representation – Mr James Legg  29th November 2016 

7 Representation – Miss Najy Nasser 29th November 2016  

8 Representation – Mr Francis Corbesier   29th November 2016  

9 Representation – Mrs Oliver Thornton  29th November 2016 

10 Representation – Ms Caroline Lemaire  29th November 2016  

11 Representation – Dr Therese Nasser 29th November 2016 

12 Representation – Mr Ian Fergusson 29th December 2016  

13 Representation – Mr Robert Hayes  29th November 2016 

14 Representation – Mrs Caroline Stoclin 29th November 2016 

15 Representation - Rana Almudhaf 28th November 2016 

16 Representation - Mr Robert Crichton 29th November 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 14



        Appendix 1 
Premises Plans   
 

 

page 15



     Appendix 2 
Applicant Supporting Documents   

 

 

page 16



 
 

page 17



page 18



        Appendix 3 
Premises History – Current Licence 16/06685/LIPT  

 
 
Application 
 

 
Details of 
Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

 
05/06275/LIPC 

 
Premises Licence 
conversion with new 
Act 
 

 
12/08/2005 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority  

 
07/01476/LIPV 

 
Application to Vary 
the Premises 
Licence: 
 
1.  To provide for a 
terminal hour for the 
supply of alcohol of 
02:00 Monday to 
Saturday and 01:00 
on Sunday.   
 
The premises are 
never open to the 
public.  This is a 
private members 
club, hence no 
change in opening 
hours.  
 

 
04/06/2007 

 
Granted by 
Licensing Sub 
Committee  
 

 
08/04413/LIPV 

 
Application to Vary 
the Premises 
Licence: 
 
Reconfigure lobby 
access to toilet 
facilities. 
  

 
10/06/2008 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority  

 
09/04686/LIPV 

 
Application to Vary 
the Premises 
Licence:  
 
To extend the 
terminal hour for 
provision of facilities 
for dancing (when 
the public are 
admitted) from 
Tuesday to Saturday 

  
Application 
Withdrawn 

page 19



until 02:00. 

 
11/03788/LIPVM 

 
Application for  a 
Minor Variation:  
 
Amend layout of 
trading areas in 
basement. 
 

 
17/05/2011 

 
Application Refused  

 
11/05694/LIPVM 

 
Application for a 
Minor variation:  
 
Amend Layout of 
Trading areas in 
basement. 
 

 
24/06/2011 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority  

 
13/09283/LIPVM 

 
Application for a 
Minor variation:  
 
To vary the premises 
licence in order to 
install and maintain a 
comprehensive 
CCTV system as per 
the minimum 
requirements of the 
Westminster Police 
Licensing Team. 
 

 
09/12/2013 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority  

 
16/06685/LIPT 

 
Transfer of the 
Premises Licence  

 
Pending  

 

 
 
 

There is no licence or appeal history for the premises.

page 20



Appendix 4 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

page 21



 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 

page 22



8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
 
 
 
 

page 23



 
Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 

9.  This licence is subject to all the former rules of management for places of 
public entertainment licensed by Westminster city council, in force from 4 
September 1998 and incorporating amendments agreed by the council on 25 
October 1999, 30 June 2000, 16 January 2001 and 1 October 2001. 

 
10.  On new year's eve the premises can remain open for the purpose of providing 

regulated entertainment from the time when the provision of regulated 
entertainment must otherwise cease on new year's eve to the time when 
regulated entertainment can commence on new year's day (or until midnight on 
new year's eve where no regulated entertainment takes place on new year's 
day). 

 
11. Notwithstanding the provisions of rule of management no. 6 the premises shall 

remain open for the purposes of this licence from 11pm on each of the days 
Sunday to Saturday to 1am on the day following. 

 
12. A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a level 

determined by and to the satisfaction of an authorised officer of the 
environmental health service, so as to ensure that no noise nuisance is caused 
to local residents or businesses. the operational panel of the noise limiter shall 
then be secured by key or password to the satisfaction of officers from the 
environmental health service and access shall only be by persons authorised 
by the premises licence holder. the limiter shall not be altered without prior 
agreement with the environmental health service. no alteration or modification 
to any existing sound system(s) should be effected without prior knowledge of 
an authorised officer of the environmental health service. no additional sound 
generating equipment shall be used on the premises without being routed 
through the sound limiter device. 

 
13.  All doors giving access/egress to the premises and all open-able windows shall 

not be fixed open after 11pm. 
 
14.  The number of persons accommodated at any one time in the premises 

(excluding staff) shall not exceed: ground floor- 80, basement- 100 
 
15.  Music and dancing shall remain ancillary to the main restaurant use. 
 
16.  The premises may remain open for the sale of alcohol and the provision of late 

night refreshment from the terminal hour for those activities on new year's eve 
through to the commencement time for those activities on new year's day. 

 
17.  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as 

per the minimum requirements of the Westminster police licensing team. all 
entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every 
person entering in any light condition. the CCTVsystem shall continually 
record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times 
when customers remain on the premises. all recordings shall be stored for a 
minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. viewing of 
recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of police or 
authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period. 

page 24



 
18.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. 
this staff member must be able to provide a police or authorised council officer 
copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay 
when requested. 

 
19.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request 

to an authorised officer of the city council or the police. it must be completed 
within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following: (a) all crimes 
reported to the venue (b) all ejections of patrons (c) any complaints received 
concerning crime and disorder (d) any incidents of disorder (e) all seizures of 
drugs or offensive weapons (f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching 
equipment or scanning equipment (g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol (h) any 
visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
20.  Alcohol may be sold or supplied: 
 

a. Subject to the following paragraphs, the permitted hours on weekdays 
shall commence at 10.00 and extend until 01.00 on Monday and at 10:00 
to 02:00 Tuesday to Saturday on the morning following, except that- 

 
(i) the permitted hours shall end at 00.00 midnight on any day on 

which music and dancing is not provided after midnight; and 
(ii)  on any day that music and dancing end between 00.00 midnight and 

01.00, the permitted hours shall end when the music and dancing 
end; 

 
b.     In relation to the morning on which summer time begins, paragraph (a) of 

this condition shall have effect:  
 

(i)  with the substitution of references to 02.00 for references to 01.00 
 

c.    Except on Sundays immediately before bank holidays (apart from Easter 
Sunday), the permitted hours on Sundays shall extend until 00.30 on the 
morning following [or, if an earlier hour is specified in the special hours 
certificate, that hour], except that- 

 
(i)   the permitted hours shall end at 00.00 midnight on any Sunday on 

which music and dancing is not  provided after midnight; 
(ii)  where music and dancing end (or, in the case of casino premises, 

gaming ends) between 00.00 midnight on any Sunday and 00.30, the 
permitted hours on that Sunday shall end when the music and dancing 
end. 

 

d.   The sale of alcohol must be ancillary to the use of the premises for music 
and dancing and substantial refreshment. 

 
f.   The permitted hours on New Year's Eve will extend to the start of permitted 

hours on the following day 00.00 on 31st December. 

 

NOTE - The above restrictions do not prohibit: 

page 25



 

(a) the sale or supply of alcohol to or the consumption of alcohol by any 
person residing in the licensed premises; 

 

(b) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the 
despatch by the vendor of the alcohol so ordered; 

 

(c) the sale of alcohol to a trader or registered club for the purposes of the 
trade or club; 

 

(d) the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen 
in which the sale or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority 
of the Secretary of State or an authorised mess of members of Her 
Majesty's naval, military or air forces; 

 
(e) the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there; 

 

(f) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private 
friends of a person residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at 
his own expense, or the consumption of  alcohol by persons so supplied 

 

(g) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons 
employed there for the purposes of the business carried on by the holder 
of the licence, or the consumption of liquor so supplied, if the liquor is 
supplied at the expense of their employer or of the person carrying on or 
in charge of the business on the premises. 

 

In this condition, any reference to a person residing in the premises shall be 
construed as including a person not residing there but carrying on or in charge 
of the business on the premises. 

 

21.    The Premises to operate as a private members' club with no admission to the 
premises to the general public in accordance with the Club Rules. 

 

22.    No admission to membership of the Club within 48 hours of making a written 
application for membership. 

 

 

Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health 
 
None proposed.  
 
Conditions proposed by the Police 
 
None proposed. 

page 26



 
  Appendix 5 

Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 
 

 
 

page 27



Premises within 75m of : The Wellington Club, 116A Knightsbridge, SW1X 7PL 
 

p / n  
 

Name of Premises 
 

Premises Address 
 

Licensed Hours 
 

-24114 
 
 
 
 

Mari Vanna 
 
 
 
 

Basement And Ground 
Floor Right 116 
Knightsbridge London 
SW1X 7PJ 
 

Monday to Saturday 
10:00 - 01:30 Sunday 
11:00 - 01:30 
 
 

-14767 
 
 
 
 

The Wellington Club 
 
 
 
 

Basement And Ground 
Floor Right 116 
Knightsbridge London 
SW1X 7PJ 
 

Sunday 09:00 - 01:00 
Monday 09:00 - 01:30 
Tuesday to Saturday 
10:00 - 02:00 
 

22578 
 
 
 
 

Mari Vanna 
 
 
 
 

Basement And Ground 
Floor Right 116 
Knightsbridge London 
SW1X 7PJ 
 

Monday to Saturday 
10:00 - 01:30 Sunday 
11:00 - 01:30 
 
 

29291 
 
 

Paxton's Head Public 
House 
 

153 Knightsbridge 
London SW1X 7PA 
 

Monday to Sunday 
10:00 - 01:30 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 28



Appendix 6 
Additional information from Mr James Legg  
 

 
 

page 29



 
 
 
 
 

page 30



 
 
 
 

page 31



 
 
 
 

page 32



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 33



 

page 34



 
 

page 35



 

page 36



 
 

page 37



 
 
 
 

page 38



 
 

page 39



 

page 40



 
 
 
 

page 41



 
 
 

page 42



 
 
 
 
 
 

page 43



 

page 44



 

page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



            
 City of Westminster 
 
 
 
 

Item No:   
 

   

Date:  26 January 2017 
   

Licensing Ref No:  16/11235/LIPN - New Premises Licence 
   

Title of Report:  Premier Inn 
90-104 Berwick Street 
London 
W1F 0QB 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  West End 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Mr Nick Nelson 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 3431 
Email: nnelson@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 
  

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 47

Agenda Item 2



1. Application 
 

1-A Applicant and premises 
 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

17 October 2016 

Applicant: Whitbread Group Plc 
Premises: Premier Inn 
Premises address: 90-104 Berwick Street 

London 
W1F 0QB 
 

Ward: 
 

West End 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

West End 

Premises description: 
 

According to the application, this is a redevelopment site 
where it is intended to create approximately 110 bed hub 
by Premier Inn at this location. It is intended that the 
proposed premises will operate as a stand-alone hotel 
with related licensed accommodation operating under the 
hub by Premier Inn brand. 
 
The proposed hotel will have at ground floor level, a 
secure entrance lobby and main hotel reception. The food 
and beverage provision usual in a development of this site 
will be situated at basement level. The bedrooms (which 
will be unlicensed) and which will comprise of the order of 
some 110 rooms, will be located in the basement, ground 
and upper floor levels. 
 
The entrance to the premises will be off Hopkins Street. 
 

Premises licence history: 
 

The site has not previously held a premises licence under 
the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

Applicant submissions: The applicant has stated the following on the application 
form: 
 
• The hotel reception and food and beverage area as 

identified on the licensing drawing (3646/Ll-001 and 
002) are intended to be used (as required) for all 
licensable activities. 
 

• It is not anticipated that the proposed development will 
adversely affect crime and disorder or public nuisance. 
 

• It is proposed that the redevelopment of the site will 
improve the area by providing jobs for the local 
community and a new Hotel facility at this location. 
 

• Premier Inn is a well-known and the leading budget 
Hotel brand within the United Kingdom, operated by 

page 48



Whitbread Group Plc of which there are a number 
successfully operating within the Westminster City 
Council area. 
 

• What is proposed at this site is one of the "hub by 
Premier Inn", a relatively new hotel concept which is a 
new generation of compact, city centre hotels. The 
first hub by Premier Inn opened in the not too distant 
past at St Martin's Lane within the Westminster 
Council licensing area. Two further hubs have been 
licensed subsequently namely on Dacre Street (due to 
open shortly) and 21 Tothill Street. The format of this 
Licence application follows the format of those other 
previously licensed developments. 

 
Following consultation with the responsible authorities, 
the applicant has agreed a schedule of conditions to be 
added to the licence, if granted (see Appendix 4). 
 
In a letter dated 8 December 2016, the applicant wrote to 
the residential objectors to attempt to mitigate any 
concerns (see Appendix 2). The same letter was sent to 
both the Soho Society and Mr Osbourne-Smith. 

 
1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 

 
Late Night Refreshment: Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors 

 
Day: Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun 

 
Start: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 N/A 
End: 23:30 23:30 23:30 23:30 00:00 00:00 N/A 
Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

To extend the proposed hours as identified on New 
Year’s Eve: 23:00 until New Year’s Day: 05:00. 
 
The premises shall remain open to permit Late Night 
Refreshment to hotel residents 24 hours a day. 
 
Please note that under Schedule 2 Para 3 of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the premises is exempt from 
requiring Late Night Refreshment for any person staying 
at the hotel for the night in question. 
 

 
Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 

 
Both 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 
End: 23:30 23:30 23:30 23:30 00:00 00:00 22:30 
Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

To extend the proposed hours as identified on New 
Year’s Eve: 10:00 until New Year’s Day: terminal hour as 

page 49



proposed being 00.30 on 2nd January. 
 
The premises shall remain open to permit the sale of 
alcohol to hotel residents 24 hours a day. 
 

 
Hours premises are open to the public 
 
Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 

 
Start: 07:00 07:00 07:00 07:00 07:00 07:00 07:00 
End: 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 23:00 
Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

The premises shall remain open 24 hours a day for hotel 
residents. 
 
For non-residents, the premises will close 30 minutes 
after the end of the non-standard timings for licensable 
activities. 
 

Adult Entertainment:  N/A 
 

 
2. Representations 

 
2-A Responsible Authorities 

 
Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health 

Representative:  Mr Anil Drayan 
Received:  
 

31 October 2016 

I wish to make the following representations based on the plans submitted and the 
supporting operating schedule:  
 

1. The hours requested for and the Supply of Alcohol ‘On’ and ‘Off’ the premises 
may lead to an increase in Public Nuisance in the West End Cumulative Impact 
Area. 

2. The hours requested for Late Night Refreshment may lead to an increase in 
Public Nuisance in the West End Cumulative Impact Area. 

 
Environmental Health also makes the following comments:  
 
• Some conditions and undertakings have been offered in the operating schedule and 
these are under consideration. Environmental Health would wish to ensure that 
conditions for licensable activities, particularly for the supply of alcohol, are consistent 
with Westminster’s Statement of Licencing Policy for a premises operating in the West 
End Cumulative Impact area.  
 
• Clarification is sought on the circumstances and meaning of ‘at the manager’s 
discretion’ for the provision of Late Night Refreshment.  
 

page 50



• The provision of sanitary accommodation for any proposed capacity should be in line 
with British Standard 6465 in order to help with preventing an increase in Public 
Nuisance in the West End Cumulative Impact Area  
 
• Environmental Health needs to assess for Public Safety the layout of the premises 
using the submitted plans. The premises will in any case need to be inspected for 
Public Safety prior to public use and it is noted that the ‘works’ conditions have been 
offered in the application.  
 
• The premises will also need to be assessed for its food preparation/cooking facilities in 
order to evaluate whether Public Nuisance may arise from odour and/or the operation of 
any plant and machinery.  
 
The applicant is therefore requested to contact the undersigned to discuss all of the 
above issues. Environmental Health may then propose further conditions to allay its 
concerns. 
 
Environmental Health has proposed a number of conditions which have been agreed by 
the applicant (see Appendix 4). 
 
Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police 

Representative: PC Sandy Russell 
 

Received: 
 

21 October 2016 

With reference to the above application, I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan 
Police, as a responsible authority, will be objecting to this application. It is our belief that 
if granted the application would undermine the Licensing Objectives. The premises are 
situated within the West End Cumulative Impact area. 
 
Following consultation, the Police have proposed a number of conditions which have 
been agreed by the applicant (see Appendix 4). 
 
Following the agreement to these conditions, the Police withdrew their 
representation on 18 November 2016. 
 
 
2-B Other Persons 

 
Name: Mr Simon Osborne-Smith 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

Flat 50, Ingestre Court 
Ingestre Place 
London 
W1F 0JL  

Received:  
 

8 November 2016 

I write on behalf of my concerned residents as chairman of Ingestre Court Residents’ 
Voice to object to late night refreshment and retail of alcohol. These sales would 
increase potential of noise from taxis, music playing pedi cabs and would draw drunk 
loud members of the public onto Hopkins street next to Ingestre Court and increase 

page 51



public urination and other anti-social behaviour issues. Ingestre Court and Hopkins 
street are located in a stress area and such late night sales would clearly have a 
significant detrimental impact on residents. 
 
On 10 December 2016, Mr Osbourne-Smith added: 
As a resident of Ingestre Court and chairman of Ingestre Court Residents Voice the 
application is objected to for the following reasons:- 
 
The original application for the development was to be a high quality hotel without 
providing food or drink in order to support sales from local businesses. However this 
application would have a detrimental impact on local businesses.  
 
The application ignores Westminster’s stress area noise limits to protect the high 
density of local residents from noise disturbances between the hours of 10pm and 8pm.  
 
Potential noise disturbances include:- 

• Proposed putting out of waste at 6.30 am which would be further increased by 
bottle sales waste. 

 
• Waste collection vehicles collecting before 8am.  

 
 

• Noise from extract systems during preparation and operating hours. 
 

 
• Smokers standing outside the premises who tend to be loud after having alcohol. 

 
 

• Pedi cabs who tend to play loud music when waiting and collecting passengers. 
 

 
• Taxis using their horns to alert they have arrived to collect passengers or when 

Hopkins street is congested due to its narrow width. 
 

 
• Noise from unmonitored children outside the premises, skateboarding is a 

current noise issue in the area. 
 

 
• Noise and disorder from dissatisfied patrons ejected from the premises. 

 
 

• Noise from an increased demand for police and emergency services. 
 

 
There is a high drugs problem in the area and so permitting the general public in the 
hotel will be an attraction to dealers and users to conduct their activities away from the 
streets. 
 
Public urination is an issue in the area and such an application may increase this issue. 
 
Entrance lobby supervision will only address external noise disturbances once they 

page 52



have occurred and disturbed the local residents and so would not be an effective 
preventative measure. 
 
The development has already left the local businesses and residents with inadequate 
parking bays for deliveries and collections and such sales would further add to the 
existing unworkable provisions. 
 
The application will increase duration and the amount of required roof plant. Current low 
level background noise monitored levels for this development are inadequate as they 
will not take into account high level plant noise directed up towards the high level 
resident’s flats to Ingestre court and Kemp house. These flats being constructed in 1975 
do not have sound proof windows and rely on opening windows for ventilation. It is 
requested that further existing noise level comparison levels are recorded from 
resident’s high level flats on elevations facing the roof plant to ensure the development 
roof plant will not increase these levels. 
 
The entrance to the hotel is in close proximity to Ingestre Courts residents entrance on 
Hopkins street and their flats above and so any form of approval of this application 
would have a significant detrimental impact on the residents and so it is requested that 
restrictions are imposed to prevent future applications to sell food and alcohol to the 
general public. 
 
Name: Mr David Gleeson 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

The Soho Society 
St Anne’s Tower  
55 Dean Street  
London  
W1D 6AF 

Received:  
 

15 November 2016 

I write to make a relevant representation to the above application on behalf of The Soho 
Society. The Soho Society objects to this application as it is currently presented, on the 
grounds of prevention of public nuisance, prevention of crime and disorder, and 
cumulative impact in the West End Cumulative Impact Area. 
 
New licensed premises in the West End Cumulative Impact Area: 
The proposal is for a new licensed premises in the West End Cumulative Impact Area. 
The new Sale by Retail of Alcohol licensable activity is of particular concern, with 
reference to Westminster City Council stress area and cumulative impact policy. Such 
new licenses should be prohibited. These venues destroy residential amenity over a 
wide area through noise nuisance as patrons disperse. If the council were minded to 
grant a new alcohol license in the cumulative impact area conditions must be inserted to 
ensure that any sale of alcohol is for bona fide hotel residents only.  
 
Licensing policy and cumulative impact:  
The Licensing Authority recognises in its Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 that 
Westminster has a substantial residential population and that the Council has a duty to 
protect it from nuisance (Policy 2.2.10).  
 
This area has been identified by the City Council (Policy 2.4.1) as a cumulative impact 
area because the cumulative effect of the concentration of late night and drink led 
premises and/or night cafes has led to serious problems of disorder and/or public 

page 53



nuisance affecting residents, visitors and other businesses. The Policy states that the 
extent of crime and disorder and public nuisance…arises from the number of people 
there late at night; a particular number of them being intoxicated, especially in the West 
End Cumulative Impact Area (Policy 2.4.1).  
 
The policies in relation to the stress areas are directed at the global and cumulative 
effects of licences on the area as a whole (Policy 2.4.5). The policies are intended to be 
strict and will only be overridden in ‘genuinely exceptional circumstances’ (Policy 2.4.2).  
 
The growth in the entertainment industry in Soho has led to a marked deterioration in 
the quality of life and well-being of local residents and it has jeopardised the 
sustainability of the community. Soho has a substantial residential community and many 
of these residents suffer from the problems identified in the ‘Characteristics of 
Cumulative Impact Areas’ (Policy Appendix 14). These include, but are not limited to, 
high levels of noise nuisance, problems with waste, urinating and defecating in the 
streets, threats to public safety, anti-social behaviour, crime and disorder and the 
change in character of historic areas.  
 
Conclusion: 
Para 9.37 of the s182 Guidance requires the licensing authority to determine the 
application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the overall interests of 
the local community.  
 
For the reasons I have set out, we believe that the application, if granted in its present 
form, would fail to promote the licensing objectives of prevention of public nuisance and 
prevention of crime and disorder. I respectfully urge the Licensing Sub-Committee to 
reject this application. 
 
On 19 December 2016, Mr Gleeson added: 
I write on behalf of the Soho Society to expand on the points made in the representation 
we submitted on 15 November 2016, and to provide the applicant and the licensing 
authority with more detailed information as to our concerns. 
 
As the recognised amenity society for Soho, we would have been happy to be 
contacted by the applicant prior to the application being submitted. We have checked 
and cannot find a record of any such contact. 
 
The principle concern the Soho Society has relates to the proximity of the proposed 
public licensed facilities to residential blocks of flats, including Ingestre Court, Kemp 
House and nos. 7-8 Ingestre Place (no. 8 is Pargiter Court, where I live). The site of the 
former Trenchard House (bordering Ingestre Place, Broadwick and Hopkins Streets) 
has also recently been redeveloped and now has approximately 80 occupied 
residences. In addition, there are numerous single flats in the immediate vicinity 
(Broadwick Street, Berwick Street and Peter Street). This relatively small area is one of 
Soho’s most densely populated residential corners, with close to three hundred 
individual homes. 
 
Given that the residences include just about everything from single-person dwellings to 
family apartments, I would guess that the area around Hopkins Street, i.e. between 
Berwick Street and Ingestre Place, Peter Street and Broadwick Street, could be home 
to almost one thousand people. Some are elderly and a few have lived most of their 
lives here – Pargiter Court is a sheltered scheme run by Soho Housing Association – 

page 54



and some have recently moved into the area. The new development on the former 
Trenchard House site brings more families back into the heart of Soho, and this building 
is crowned by a small number of millionaire apartments which are overlooked by the 
high-rise flats of Ingestre Court next door. I would estimate that most residents are 
unfamiliar with the licensing process but if they were aware of this application would be 
concerned about its impact on their immediate environment. 
 
I note that the applicant states in the application that ‘The format of this licence 
application follows the format of [the applicant’s other] previously licensed 
developments. I am not quite sure what this means. I am aware that the applicant has 
obtained a premises licence for this brand in the West End Cumulative Impact Area 
(CIA), at 110 St Martin’s Lane. I have studied that premises licence and read the 
Minutes of the relevant Sub-Committee hearing, and note that in fact the licence 
granted was on significantly lesser terms than the application now pending in Soho. 
 
With the above in mind, I can confirm that our concerns are as follows: 
 
1. The applicant premises is in the heart of the West End CIA as defined in the City 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 (SLP). 
 
2. The application is, in effect, for a bar open to the public. 
 
3. As such, the application is directly contrary to policies CIP1 and PB2. 
 
4. The hours sought for the public are outside the ‘core hours’ set out in HRS1 of the 
SLP. 
 
5. The hours sought for licensable activities are also in excess of the hours granted to 
the applicant’s premises at 110 St Martin’s Lane. 
 
6. It is difficult to ascertain from the plans submitted whether the bar is accessed directly 
or easily from the street. If so, para 2.5.57 of the SLP is engaged. 
 
7. Although the postal address of the premises is Berwick Street, I understand that the 
main entrance will in fact be on Hopkins Street. 
 
8. Hopkins Street has always been a quiet street, with Berwick Street businesses and 
shops backing onto it. This makes it a perfect location for private residences, and as I 
have said above, the street is abutted by numerous high- and low-rise residential 
properties. 
 
9. The occupants of the numerous residential properties in the near vicinity would be 
impacted by an increase in public nuisance. 
 
10. The planning permission granted for the development made it clear that the ‘food 
and beverage area’ shall not be open to the general public. 
 
11. Although I am aware that a decision of the planning authority does not bind the 
licensing authority, I feel that the terms of the planning permission are so diametrically 
opposed to what is sought in the licence application that the considered decision of the 
planning authority must hold some relevance for the licensing authority when it reaches 
a decision on the licence application. 

page 55



 
I hope that this submission will assist the parties in understanding the reasons for the 
Soho Society’s representation. 
 
We will of course consider any amendments to the application. We will attend the 
hearing on January 26th and we currently intend to call Mr Andrew Murray, a resident of 
Kemp House, as a witness. 
 
 
3. Policy & Guidance 

 
The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 
Policy HRS1 applies (i) Applications for hours within the core hours will 

generally be granted, subject to not being contrary to 
other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy.  

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours will be 
considered on their merits, subject to other relevant 
policies and with particular regard to the criteria 
specified. 

Policy CIP1 applies (i) It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse 
applications in the Cumulative Impact Areas for: 
pubs and bars, fast food premises, and premises 
offering facilities for music and dancing; other than 
applications to vary hours within the Core Hours 
under Policy HRS1.  

(ii) Applications for other licensable activities in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas will be subject to other 
policies, and must demonstrate that they will not add 
to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact 
Areas. 

Policy PB2 applies It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications in 
the Cumulative Impact Areas other than applications to vary 
hours within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

 
Policy HOT1 applies Subject to the effect on the promotion of the licensing 

objectives and other relevant policies in this Statement, 
premises licences for hotels will generally be granted so that:  

(a) Alcohol is permitted to be sold at any time to people staying 
in hotel rooms for consumption on the premises.  

(b) The hours of serving alcohol to the general public will be 
subject to conditions limiting the sale of alcohol after a 
specified time to those attending pre-booked events held at the 
hotel.  

(c) The exhibition of film, in the form of recordings or non-

page 56



broadcast television programmes to be viewed in hotel 
bedrooms, will generally be permitted. 

 
 
4. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history - None 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 
Report author: Mr Nick Nelson 

Senior Licensing Officer 
Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 3431 

Email: nnelson@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
 
  

page 57



R
EC

EPTIO
N

V
O

ID
 O

V
E

R

EN
TR

A
N

C
E LO

B
B

Y

STA
IR

S D
O

W
N

 TO
 F&

B

U
P

H
 O

 P K
 I N

 S
   S

 T R
 E

 E
 T

LIFT LO
B

B
Y

O
U

TSID
E H

O
TEL

D
EM

ISE

O
U

TSID
E H

O
TEL

D
EM

ISE

ELEC
TR

IC
STO

R
E

A X I O
 M

A R
 C

 H
 I T E C

 T S

C
lient

Project

D
raw

ing

D
raw

n
D

ate
S

cale

W
hitbread PLC

G
round Floor Licensing Plan

3646-L1-001
D

raw
ing N

o.

1:25 @
 A

1
24.11.15

JL

R
evision

C
hecked

Status
IN

FO

1 B
rooklands Y

ard
S

outhover H
igh S

treet
Lew

es
E

ast S
ussex

B
N

7 1H
U

 

H
ub by P

rem
ier Inn

London
B

erw
ick S

treet

Tel.  01273 479269
w

w
w

.axiom
architects.co.uk

R
ev

D
ate

D
escription

B
y

This draw
ing is the copyright of A

xiom
 A

rchitects.  The contractor is to 
check all site dim

ensions and levels before w
ork starts.  This draw

ing 
m

ust be read w
ith and checked against all structural and other specialist 

draw
ings, specification and bills of quantities.  N

otify architect of any 
discrepancies. 

 
The 

contractor 
is 

to 
com

ply 
w

ith 
all 

current 
B

ritish 
S

tandards and B
uilding R

egulations w
hether or not specifically stated on 

these draw
ings.   D

o not scale from
 draw

ings.

FP

FSFBEP

FIR
E A

LA
R

M
 PAN

EL

FIR
E

M
A

N
'S

 S
W

ITC
H

FIR
E A

LA
R

M
 S

O
U

N
D

E
R

 (W
A

LL M
O

U
N

TE
D

)

FIR
E A

LA
R

M
 C

A
LL P

O
IN

T W
ITH

 FIR
E P

R
O

C
E

D
U

R
E

S
 N

O
TIC

E
 O

V
E

R

FIR
E B

LA
N

K
E

T

FIR
E R

IS
E

R
 D

U
C

T 

E
M

E
R

G
E

N
C

Y
 LIG

H
T 

P
U

S
H

 B
U

TTO
N

 TO
 E

X
IT

G
A

S S
H

U
T O

FF B
U

TTO
N
 

D
E

TE
C

TO
R

 W
ITH

 S
O

U
N

D
E

R

ILLU
M

IN
A

TE
D

 E
X

IT S
IG

N

N
O

N
-ILLU

M
IN

A
TE

D
 FIR

E E
S

C
A

P
E

 D
IR

E
C

TIO
N

A
L S

IG
N

H
A

LF H
O

U
R

 FIR
E

 D
O

O
R

A
U

TO
M

A
TIC FIR

E
 D

O
O

R
 K

E
E

P
 C

LE
A

R
 S

IG
N

,
TH

E
S

E
 D

O
O

R
S

 H
AVE E

LE
C

TR
O

M
A

G
N

E
TIC

 H
O

LD
 O

P
E

N
 D

E
V

IC
E

S
 

LIN
K

E
D

 TO
 TH

E FIR
E

 A
LA

R
M

FIR
E D

O
O

R
 K

E
E

P S
H

U
T S

IG
N

FIR
E D

O
O

R
 K

E
E

P LO
C

K
E

D
 S

IG
N

V
IS

IO
N

 PAN
EL 

P
U

S
H

 B
A

R
 TO

 O
P

E
N

FO
A

M
 E

X
TIN

G
U

IS
H

E
R

P
O

W
D

E
R

 E
X

TIN
G

U
IS

H
E

R

C
A

R
B

O
N

 D
IO

X
ID

E E
X

TIN
G

U
IS

H
E

R

W
A

TE
R E

X
TIN

G
U

IS
H

E
R

W
E

T C
H

E
M

IC
A

L E
X

TIN
G

U
IS

H
E

R

P
H

 R
E

FU
G

E

DEXIT G

VPPBco2

w
c

W FP

PH
R VXY

K
EY :

N
O

TE
 :

TH
E

 FIR
E

 FIG
H

TIN
G

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 TH
E

 P
LA

N
S

 IS
 

IN
D

IC
A

TIV
E

 O
N

LY
 A

S A
T TH

E
 TIM

E
 O

F TH
E

 P
LA

N
. TH

E
R

E
 M

A
Y

 B
E

 
M

IN
O

R
 M

O
D

IFIC
A

TIO
N

S
 TO

 S
U

C
H

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T O

R
 IT M

A
Y B

E
 

M
O

V
E

D
 FR

O
M

 TIM
E

 TO
 TIM

E
 W

ITH
 TH

E
 A

G
R

E
E

M
E

N
T O

R
 A

T TH
E

 
D

IR
E

C
TIO

N
 O

F TH
E

 FIR
E

 S
A

FE
TY

 O
FFIC

E
R

. TH
IS

 S
H

A
LL N

O
T 

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

 TH
E

 P
LA

N
S

 TO
 B

E
 A

M
E

N
D

E
D

.

LIC
E

N
S

A
B

LE
 A

C
TIV

ITIE
S

 M
A

Y B
E

 C
A

R
R

IE
D

 O
U

T IN
 TH

E
 P

U
B

LIC
 

A
R

E
A

S
 O

F TH
E

 P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
.

A
LL S

TE
P

S
 A

N
D

 S
TA

IR
C

A
S

E
S

 C
O

M
P

LY
 W

ITH
 TH

E
 R

E
LE

V
A

N
T 

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 R

E
G

U
LA

TIO
N

S
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

TS
 IN

 FO
R

C
E

 AT TH
E

 TIM
E

 
TH

E
Y

 W
E

R
E

 IN
S

TA
LLE

D
.

M
ain E

ntrance  

FP

FS

EXIT

EXIT

EXIT

EXIT

EXIT

VP

VP

X

X

YY

Y

P

P

co2
F

co2F

co2 F

E
D

EEE

E

D

ED E
D

E
E

E D

E
D

E

E E

E

D
E

Appendix 1 - 
Ground Floor

page 58

JGriffin
Polygon

JGriffin_1
Text Box
LegendLicensed area is public area outlined in red.



Appendix 1 - Basement

page 59

JGriffin_2
Polygon

JGriffin_3
Text Box
LegendLicensed area is public area outlined in red.



Appendix 1 - Indicative general arrangement plans

page 60



page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



page 63



page 64



page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



page 67



page 68



Dear Mr Gleeson, 

Premises – hub by Premier Inn (Proposed), 90-104 Berwick Street, Soho, 
London, W1F OQB 
PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION 

We act for Whitbread Group Plc on whose behalf we have lodged the above 
Premises Licence.  We have been supplied with a copy of the objection which you 
have filed with the Council dated 15th November.  

You are, no doubt familiar with the Premier Inn and hub by Premier Inn brand of 
which there are a significant number nationally and several within the 
Westminster Council licensing area.  

You will have seen the original form of our application which follows Westminster 
core hours and offered a number of reassurances in terms of proposed conditions 
on the Licence.   

Since the application was lodged we have engaged with both the Police and 
Environmental Health, the only two Responsible Authorities to make 
representations to our application.  Those representations have effectively been 
compromised by the agreement of a scheme of conditions set out in the attached 
document.  

We would particularly draw your attention to the following conditions:- 

- 1, 2, 3, 11, 17, 18, 19, 20, 24 and 26. 

Given the nature of our client’s operation, the fact that the food and beverage 
provision for this proposed Hotel will be in the basement, accessed only through 
the Hotel reception, which will be 24 hour manned at ground floor level, your 
concerns may be alleviated.  

If the matter is to proceed to a hearing, we currently understand that it is 
anticipated that the matter will be listed on 26th January at 10.00am.  

David Gleeson 
Licensing Chair 
The Soho Society 
St Anne’s Tower 
55 Dean Street 
LONDON 
W1D 8AF      

Our Ref: JRG/PREM/PRE290 
Contact: John Gaunt 

8 December 2016 

Appendix 2 - Applicant letter to objectors

page 69



 
If a conversation would assist, please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
I would like to hope that the nature of the application and the reassurance offered 
through the agreed conditions will enable you to withdraw your representation.  I 
hope to hear from you.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
John Gaunt 
John Gaunt & Partners 
Email: jgaunt@john-gaunt.co.uk 
 
 
 

page 70



Appendix 4 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

page 71



 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 
photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 
 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 
in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 
to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  
(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 
 

(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 
which is available to customers on the premises; and 

 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 

page 72



8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health and the Police and agreed by 
the applicant: 
 
9.  The licensable activities authorised by this licence and provided at the premises shall be 

ancillary to the main function of the premises as a Hotel.  
 

page 73



10.  There shall be no self-service of alcohol on the premises and alcohol may only be 
supplied to:  
a)  Hotel residents; 
b)  To persons in the basement bar where members of the public present for the 

consumption of alcohol shall vacate the premises by 23:30 Monday to Thursday, 
midnight Friday and Saturday, 22:30 Sunday; and where 

c)  Alcoholic and other drinks may not be removed from the premises save for 
consumption in the hotel bedrooms.  

 
11.  There shall be no external advertising of the basement bar that is visible from the street.  
 
12.  The entrance lobby will be supervised by staff 24 hours a day.  
 
13.  There shall be no drinks promotions at the premises which are inconsistent with the 

need to promote responsible drinking  
 
14.  A Challenge 21 scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only acceptable 

forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as driving 
licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.  

 
15.  A record shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The record should include 

the date and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff who refused 
the sale. The record shall be available for inspection at the premises by the police or an 
authorised officer of the City Council at all times whilst the premises are open.  

 
16.  Children under the age of 16 shall not be permitted to enter the premises after 21:00 

unless dining with an adult or attending a pre booked function or resident in the hotel.  
 
17.  Staff will receive training on matters concerning underage sales, drugs policies and 

operating procedures  
 
18.  The use of door staff will be risk assessed on an ongoing basis by the licence holder. 

Where engaged, door staff shall be licenced by the Security Industry Authority.  
 
19.  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All 
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. 
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the proper request of 
Police or authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day period.  

 
20.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when properly requested.  

 
21.  Food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available in all 

parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises.  
 
22.  The management of the premises will liaise with police on issues of local concern or 

disorder. The management will join the local Pubwatch / Safer West End Radio scheme 
where available.  

 
23.  No advertisements of any kind (including placard, poster, sticker, flyer, picture, letter, 

sign or other mark) that advertises or promotes the establishment, its premises, or any 

page 74



of its events, facilities, goods or services shall be inscribed or affixed upon the surface of 
the highway, or upon any building, structure, works, street furniture, tree, or any other 
property, or be distributed to the public.  

 
24.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the following:  
 

(a) all crimes reported to the venue  
(b) all ejections of patrons  
(c) any complaints received regarding crime disorder  
(d) any incidents of disorder  
(e) any faults in the CCTV system  
(f) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  

 
25.  No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance inside any noise sensitive premises.  

 
26.  Patrons will be encouraged by staff to leave quietly and respect the interests of the 

occupiers of any nearby noise sensitive premises; where appropriate the licensee or a 
suitable staff member will monitor patrons leaving at the closing time.  

 
27.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 

needs of the local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.  
 
28.  The premises licence holder shall ensure that any patrons smoking immediately outside 

the premises do so in an orderly manner and so as to ensure that there is no public 
nuisance or obstruction of the public highway  

 
29.  A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly available at 

all times the premises is open. This telephone number is to be made available to 
residents and businesses in the vicinity upon request.  

 
30.  There shall be no striptease or nudity, in the public licensed area and all persons shall 

be decently attired at all times, except when the premises are operating under the 
authority of a Sexual Entertainment Venue licence.  

 
31.  The licence holder shall ensure sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent 

litter or waste arising or accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside 
the premises, and that this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings 
collected and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements.  

 
32.  No collection of waste or recycling materials (including bottle) from the premises shall 

take place between 23:00 and 07:00 on the following day.  
 
33.  No deliveries to the premises shall take place between 23:00 and 07:00 on the following 

day.  
 
34.  All waste if to be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 

minutes before the scheduled collection times.  
 
35.  Contact numbers for local taxi firm(s) shall be kept at the premises and made available 

to patrons requiring a taxi.  
 
36.  The number of persons permitted in the basement at any one time (excluding staff) shall 

not exceed 90 persons.  

page 75



37.  No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until the premises have been 
assessed as satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team at which time 
this condition shall be removed from the Licence by the Licensing Authority - if there are 
minor layout changes during the course of construction new plans shall be submitted.  

 

page 76



Residential /
Proposed 
Residential

Other Uses

Under 
Construction

Proportion 
Residential 
of all Uses

Premier Inn

Data Source: Uniform Database
Date: 13/01/2017

10
Meters

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordnance
Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office. © Crown copyright and/or database right 2013.
All rights reserved. Licence number LA 100019597

249

Not known

Not known

Not known

Appendix 5

page 77



p / n Name of Premises Premises Address Premises Type

14/00806/LIPDPS Polpetto 11 Berwick Street London W1F 0PL
Friday to Saturday 09:00 - 00:00 Sunday 09:00 - 22:30 
Monday to Thursday 09:00 - 23:30

16/06604/LIPDPS Not Recorded
Trenchard House 19 - 25 Broadwick Street 
London W1F 0DF

Friday to Saturday 08:00 - 00:00 Monday to Thursday 
08:00 - 23:30 Sunday 10:00 - 22:30

15/07158/LIPDPS Amathus
Hammer House 113-117 Wardour Street London 
W1F 0UN Monday to Saturday 08:00 - 23:00 Sunday 10:00 - 22:30

06/07882/WCCMAP Blue Posts Public House 22 Berwick Street London W1F 0QA Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 23:30 Sunday 12:00 - 23:00

15/05416/LIPDPS Duck & Rice 90-91 Berwick Street London W1F 0QB

Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:00 Monday to Thursday 
10:00 - 23:30 Sundays before Bank Holidays 12:00 - 00:00 
Sunday 12:00 - 22:30

15/04952/LIPN Red Dog
Basement And Ground Floor 20 Berwick Street 
London W1F 0PY

Friday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:00 Monday to Thursday 
10:00 - 23:30 Sundays before Bank Holidays 12:00 - 00:00 
Sunday 12:00 - 22:30

15/01484/LIPDPS The Book Shop 12 Ingestre Place London W1F 0JF Monday to Sunday 12:00 - 23:00

14/06445/LIPT Mediterranean Cafe 18 Berwick Street London W1F 0PU Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 00:30 Sunday 12:00 - 00:00

14/05938/LIPDPS The Player
Basement 8 - 12 Broadwick Street London W1F 
8HW Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 01:30 Sunday 12:00 - 00:00

16/00293/LIPT Bar Du Marche Ground Floor 19 Berwick Street London W1F 0PX
Monday to Friday 10:00 - 01:00 Saturday 11:00 - 01:00 
Sunday 12:00 - 00:00

14/09835/LIPDPS Princi
Basement And Ground Floor 135 - 139 Wardour 
Street London W1F 0UT Monday to Sunday 00:00 - 00:00

13/07127/LIPN Flat White Limited 17 Berwick Street London W1F 0PT
Monday to Friday 08:00 - 22:00 Saturday to Sunday 09:00 - 
22:00 Sundays before Bank Holidays 09:00 - 23:00

15/02037/LIPDPS My Place
Basement And Ground Floor 21 Berwick Street 
London W1F 0PZ

Thursday to Saturday 07:00 - 00:00 Monday to 
Wednesday 07:00 - 23:30 Sundays before Bank Holidays 
10:00 - 00:00 Sunday 10:00 - 22:30

15/06480/LIPN Duck & Rice First Floor 90-91 Berwick Street London W1F 0QB Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 01:30 Sunday 12:00 - 01:30

11/00024/LIPDPS Yauatcha
Basement 15 - 17 Broadwick Street London W1F 
0DE

Monday to Saturday 08:00 - 01:00 Sunday 10:00 - 00:00 
Monday to Saturday 10:00 - 23:30 Sunday 12:00 - 23:00

13/03779/LIPN Yauatcha
Basement And Ground Floor 15 - 17 Broadwick 
Street London W1F 0DE Monday to Sunday 08:00 - 01:00

Premises within 75m of: Premier Inn, 90-104 Berwick Street

page 78



 
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 
 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

March 2015 

4 Application Form 17 October 2016 
5 Representation – Environmental Health 31 October 2016 
6 Representation – Metropolitan Police 21 October 2016 
7 Representation – Mr Osbourne-Smith 8 November 2016 
8 Representation – The Soho Society 15 November 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



page 81

Agenda Item 3



page 82



page 83



page 84



page 85



page 86



page 87



page 88



page 89



page 90



page 91



page 92



page 93



page 94



page 95



page 96



page 97



page 98



page 99



page 100



page 101



page 102



page 103



page 104



page 105



page 106



page 107



page 108



page 109



page 110



page 111



page 112



page 113



page 114



page 115



page 116



page 117



page 118



page 119



page 120



page 121



page 122



page 123



page 124



page 125



page 126



page 127



page 128



page 129



page 130



page 131



page 132



page 133



page 134



page 135



page 136



page 137



page 138



page 139



page 140



page 141



page 142



page 143



page 144



page 145



page 146



page 147



page 148



page 149



page 150



page 151



page 152



page 153



page 154



page 155



page 156



page 157



page 158



page 159



page 160



page 161



page 162



page 163



page 164



page 165



page 166



page 167



page 168



page 169



page 170



page 171



page 172



page 173



page 174



page 175



page 176



page 177



page 178



page 179



page 180



page 181



page 182



page 183



page 184



page 185



page 186



page 187



page 188



page 189



page 190



page 191



page 192



page 193



page 194



page 195



page 196



page 197



This page is intentionally left blank



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

 
   

Date:  26 January 2017 
   

Licensing Ref No:  16/11417/LIPN - New Premises Licence 
   

Title of Report:  38 St John's Wood Terrace 
London 
NW8 6LS 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  Abbey Road 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 199

Agenda Item 4



 
1. Application 

 
1-A Applicant and premises 

 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

19 October 2016 

Applicant: DrunchSW3 Limited 
 

Premises:  
 

Premises address: 38 St John's Wood 
Terrace 
London 
NW8 6LS 
 

Ward: 
 

Abbey Road  

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

None 

Premises description: 
 

The premises will be operating as a Public House.  

Premises licence history: 
 

This premises did have a premises licence 
(06/11460/WCCMAP) which was surrendered on 24th 
April 2015 
 

Applicant submissions: Following discussions with the Metropolitan Police 
Service the applicant has reduced the opening hours on a 
Sunday from 23:00 until 22:30. 
 

 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 
 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

Both 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of trade on New Years Eve until the start of 
trade on New Years Day.  

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 23:30 23:30 23:30 23:30 23:30 23:30 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of trade on New Years Eve until the start of 
trade on New Years Day. 
 

Adult Entertainment:  Not applicable.  
 

page 200



2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Consultation Team  

Representative:  Anil Drayan 
 

Received:  
 

10th November 2016 
 

  
The applicant has submitted plans of the premises, ref LP01 – 100, dared Oct 16, 
showing the licensed areas. 
 
The applicant is seeking the following licensable activities: 
 

1.  Supply of Alcohol for ‘On’ and ‘Off’ the premises, Monday to Sunday from 
10:00 to 23:00 and from end of trade on New Year’s Eve to start of trade on 
New Year’s Day. 

 
I wish to make the following representations based on the plans and operating 
schedule submitted: 
 

1. The Supply of Alcohol ‘On’ the premises and for the hours requested may have 
the effect of increasing Public Nuisance in the area. 

 
Environmental Health also makes the following comments: 
 
I understand the premises were previously licensed and that that operation ceased 
on 20th March 2015. Whilst operating under that previous licence a premises history 
check of Environmental Health records show numerous noise complaints made 
against the premises   

 
It is not clear if the premises have undergone refurbishment for the proposed use and 
will in any case need to be inspected for Public Safety prior to public use.  

 
The provision and standards of sanitary accommodation for any proposed capacity is 
recommended to be at least in line with British Standard 6465, as amended. 
 
Some conditions have been offered in the operating schedule but they do not 
address all Environmental Health concerns, particularly for the use of any external 
areas 
 
The applicant is requested to contact the undersigned to arrange a site visit to 
discuss all these issues and Environmental Health may then suggest additional 
conditions to allay its concerns.   
 
 
 
 
 

page 201



2-B Other Persons 
 

Name: Mr Billy Suid 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

36 St john's Wood Terrace 
London 
NW8 6JL  

Received:  
 

29th October 2016 

We have looked at the application and can only object to it at this stage given that: 
 
- The information about opening hours is currently not accessible on the application. 
While the application document indicates sales of alcohol between 10.00 and 23.00, a 
separate document titled "Email from applicant amending hours for sales of alcohol" 
was subsequently submitted. Its title clearly indicates that it intends to amend the hours 
for sale of alcohol and that document cannot be downloaded/viewed from the council 
website due to its unusual type (.msg). Given the importance of alcohol sale hour, 
without this information we can only object the application 
 
- There is no reference to prior experience of the proposed licence holder in the 
application document and a quick online search has not highlighted any. Running a 
public house of that size requires a high level of experience and we cannot support an 
application to someone with no experience 
 
- The application indicates that no recorded music would be played. Has this section 
been overlooked ? Public houses do tend to play some recorded music. 
 
While we would support the return of the premise to fruitful use, this application lacks 
important information to know if it would be a benefit to the community. 
 
Given the location of the premise (opposite a school, with many families with children 
within earshot), it's vital that the right kind of establishments is supported. 
 

 Name: Ms Mary Nolan 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

C/o Stephen Lindsey 
37 Cameron House 
St Johns Wood Terrace 
NW8 6LR  

Received:  
 

4th November 2016  

I am mortified to hear another pub is opening where the Star Pub was in St Johns Wood 
Terrace NW8 6LR. 
 
How can you expect families with young children to put up with the horrendous 
behaviour that went on there every single night? People out in the middle of the road 
screaming and shouting and smoking until all hours. I have a young grandson who lives 
there and every night he was crying with exhaustion through lack of sleep. He couldnt 
even do his homework for the noise of vulgar people swearing and shouting. This 
carried on into the small hours with the police being called every night several times and 
men running up the road with knives.  
 
How can you possibly agree planning permission to open yet another pub in a 

page 202



residential area? It is not a 'family or community' place to go. It is rowdy and a 
nightmare to residents who have to try to go to work each day. It was running at a 
severe loss. The woman who ran it was given a substantial sum to leave. I has been 
absolute heaven since it closed. It is nothing short of child abuse to allow little children 
to hear behaviour like that every night. I know you are thinking of profit but do not put 
money above children's welfare.  
 
I have stayed overnight at my grandsons and didnt sleep a wink until the early hours. It 
is cruelty beyond belief! There is a club on the opposite corner but that does not disturb 
people because they are not drinking and smoking outside all evening getting louder by 
the amount they drink. When there are cricket matches the supporters are standing in 
the middle of the road because there are so many of them. You would think they were 
in the room with you. We cant hear each other talk. In any other situation there would 
be a noise abatement order slapped on them. The police are sick and tired of being 
called out to them. Do please check!  
 
This planning application has to be declined. Nowhere in London or anywhere would 
this application be approved. The expense alone for police being called out is 
horrendous. Far out weighing the rates the council would get for it.  
 
I will have to take this to Downing Street if you allow it. It is sickening to see my 
grandchild crying because he cannot get to sleep and falling asleep in class because of 
these selfish drinkers and smokers. There has been young underage people going in 
there as well as many people selling stolen goods in there and this will continue I am 
certain.  
 
So make a stand and do the correct think and reject this application with immediate 
effect. It is a no brainer.  
 
My son lives at  St Johns Wood Terrace. He has been through so much. He lost his wife 
because the ambulance didnt show up for over three hours and his wife died in the 
ambulance after screaming with internal bleeding all that time. Now my grandson, who 
saw the whole thing going on as well, cant even get a nights sleep which is every child's 
right.  
 
It is because they are allowed to drink and smoke in the street. The smoke is coming 
into my son's apartment which is illegal. The noise is unbearable. 
 
This application must not go ahead.  
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 203



3. Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 

Policy PB1 applies: Applications will only be granted if it can be demonstrated that 
the proposal meets the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1. 

Policy HRS1 applies: 

 

 (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below 
in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies. 

 
4. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

Appendix 6 Additional information from Environmental Health  
 

 
Report author: Miss Heidi Lawrance 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

March 2015 

4 Application Form 19th October 2016 

5 Representation – Environmental Health       10th November 2016 

6 Representation – Mr Billy Suid 29th October 2016  

7 Representation – Mary Nolan  4th November 2016  

page 204



        Appendix 1 
Premises Plans   
 

 

page 205



 
      Appendix 2 

Applicant Supporting Documents 
 

 
 

page 206



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 207



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 208



 

 
 
 

page 209



page 210



 
 

page 211



page 212



 
        Appendix 3 

Premises History -  06/11460/WCCMAP 
 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of 
Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

 
05/08420/LIPC & 
06/11460/WCCMAP 

 
Conversion 
application (new 
legislation)  
 

 
30/09/2005 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority  

 
Licence surrendered on 24th April 2015 

 
There is no appeal history for the premises.

page 213



 
Appendix 4 

 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 

page 214



less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 

page 215



 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
 
 
 
 

page 216



Conditions consistent with the operating schedule and agreed with 
Environmental Health  
 

9. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 
minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All 
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. 
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or 
authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period.  

 
10. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.  

 
11. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance.  

 
12. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 

needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.  
 

13. Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons 
to respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly.  

 
14. A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly available at 

all times the premises is open. This telephone number is to be made available to 
residents and businesses in the vicinity.  

 
15. The number of persons permitted in the premises at any one time (excluding staff) shall 

not exceed (100) persons, with a maximum of 35 in the enclosed external area shown 
on the plans (within the red line) 

 
16. Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be 

available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 
on the premises.  

 
17. No deliveries to the premises shall take place between (23.00) and (08.00) on the 

following day.  
 

18. There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all persons shall be decently attired at all 
times, except when the premises are operating under the authority of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue licence.  

 
19. A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises 

where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the 
PASS Hologram  

 
20. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours 
of the incident and will record the following: (a) all crimes reported to the venue (b) all 
ejections of patrons (c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder (d) any 
incidents of disorder (e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons (f) any faults in the 

page 217



CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment (g) any refusal of the sale of 
alcohol (h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  

 
21. Any special effects or mechanical installations shall be arranged, operated and stored so 

as to minimise any risk to the safety of those using the premises. The following special 
effects will only be used on 10 days prior notice being given to the licensing authority 
where consent has not previously been given. • dry ice and cryogenic fog • smoke 
machines and fog generators • pyrotechnics including fireworks • firearms • lasers • 
explosives and highly flammable substances. • real flame. • strobe lighting.  

 
22. The licence holder shall enter into an agreement with a hackney carriage and/or private 

carriage firm to provide transport for customers, with contact numbers made readily 
available to customers who will be encouraged to use such services.  

 
23. The premises licence holder shall ensure that any patrons drinking and/or smoking 

outside the premises do so in an orderly manner and are supervised by staff so as to 
ensure that there is no public nuisance or obstruction of the public highway.  

 
24. The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape provisions, 

emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and mechanical equipment, 
shall at all material times be maintained in good condition and full working order.  

 
25. The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free 

of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the 
plans provided.  

 
26. All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self closing and not held open other 

than by an approved device.  
 

27. Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency safety 

signs or emergency equipment.  

 

28. All fabrics, curtains, drapes and similar features including materials used in 

finishing and furnishing shall be either non-combustible or be durably or inherently 

flame-retarded fabric. Any fabrics used in escape routes (other than foyers), 

entertainment areas or function rooms, shall be non-combustible 

 

29. The premises may remain open for the sale of alcohol, regulated entertainment 

and the provision of late night refreshment from the terminal hour for those 

activities on New Year's Eve through to the commencement time for those 

activities on New Year's Day.  

 
30. All outside tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable by 23:00 hours Mon-Sat and by 

22.30 Sun 

 
31. All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 21:00 hours, or at any time 

when regulated entertainment takes place, except for the immediate access and egress 
of persons  

 
32. Alcohol shall only be consumed outside the premises building in the enclosed external 

area shown on the plans (within the red line) and shall only be consumed by patrons 
seated at tables 

 
33. From 18.00 until 23.00 Mon Sat and until 22.30 Sun alcohol consumed outside the 

premises building (in the enclosed external area shown on the plans (within the red line) 
shall only be consumed by patrons as an ancillary to taking a table meal.  

page 218



 

34. After 21:00 hours patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, 

e.g. to smoke, shall be limited to 10 persons at any one time. For the avoidance of doubt 

this number does not include the patrons seated outside in accordance with conditions 

[XXXXX] 

 

35. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient 

measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from 

customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be 

swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with 

the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business. 

 

36. Loudspeakers shall not be located outside the premises building 
 

37. No fumes, steam or odours from cooking shall be emitted from the licensed premises so 

as to cause a nuisance to any persons living or carrying on business in the area where 

the premises are situated  

 
38. No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until the premises has been 

assessed as satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team at which time 

this condition shall be removed from the Licence by the licensing authority.  

 
39. Prior to the Licence taking effect, the plans as deposited will be checked by the 

Environmental Health Consultation Team to ensure they are an accurate reflection of the 
premises constructed. Where the premises layout has changed during the course of 
construction new plans shall be provided to the LFEPA, Environmental Health 
Consultation Team, the Police and the Licensing Authority 

 
 
 
 

page 219



 
  Appendix 5 

Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 
 

 

page 220



Appendix 6 
Additional Information from Environmental Health 
 

Re: Application 16/11417/LIPN  
 
Interventions by Noise Team, Licensing and City Inspectors  in respect of the The 
Star, 38, St John’s Wood Terrace  ( Between July 2014 and  May 2012) 
 
 

Date, day 

and time 
of 
complaint 

Customer 
affected 

Nature of 
complaint 

Actions by Noise Team and  
Licensing Inspectors   

11.07.2014, 
Friday 
19:38 

Customer A 
Cameron 
House 

Loud and rowdy 
patrons in pub outside 
property of Star Pub 

11.07.2014, 21:17 
The Star. Irish voices very audible 
across road. good natured. seems to 
be one table of men causing the 
noise, laughing/shouting but the 
words 'fucking' and 'wanker' used 
quite frequently and clearly audible 
across road on opposite pavement. 
people sitting under canvas 
umbrellas in front area. spoke with 
manageress, she said she would 
throw the men out which i said i was 
not asking for but she did 
immediately go to speak with the 
table of men to calm them down. 

04.10.2013  
Friday 
21:58 

Customer A 
Cameron 
House 

Noise ongoing.  Caller 
does not want a call 
back however but 
wants to report the 
noise is still going on. 

04.10.2013 23:50 Visited. Pub closed 

04.10.2013 
Friday 
 20:31 

Customer A 
Cameron 
House 

Screaming coming 
from the Star Pub on 
St Johns Wood 
Terrace. Customer’s 
son is unable to sleep 
due to the noise, child 
is 8 years old. 
 

04.10.2013, 21:55 
Visit 9 people outside at the time of 
visit no excessive noise at the time of 
visit. have a point of contact during 
opening hours. 
 
 
 

28.09.2013 
Saturday 
21:10 

LICENSING 
INSPECTOR 
– self 
generated 
visit to 
follow up 
complaints 

Recent complaints - 
visit to check outside 
area & to speak to the 
DPS 

Spoke to Mrs Maguire, the DPS.  
Explained that there had been noise 
complaints regarding the outside 
area. She was very disappointed 
because she had not received noise 
complaints in the past. I explained 
the licensing objectives   that a 
resident could call for a Review if 
they felt that they'd experienced 

page 221



nuisance. She fully understood this 
but felt that the complainant had 
been making trouble for her. I 
explained that I couldn't comment - 
all I could tell her were the times   
dates of the complaints. She was 
interested to know who the 
complainant was but I said I couldn't 
say.   
 
I said that I thought that she must 
monitor the outside area strictly and, 
if I were here, I would consider a 
terminal hour for the outside area - 
maybe 10pm. She considered this 
but said that sometimes people 
wanted to go out for a cigarette - I 
explained that if drinks are not 
permitted outside people tend to go 
outside for less time and they're 
more likely to go out on their own, 
rather than as a group. This is for her 
to consider. I said whatever she 
decided to do she must make every 
effort to ensure there was no reason 
to complain. 
 
At the time of visit there were only 
two people outside, despite it being 
a nice evening. There's quite a large 
private area, so it's likely to be quite 
busy at times. However, the 
neighbours are not immediately 
close - there is a block of flats set 
slightly back. However, if there was a 
large crowd there is potential that 
some nuisance could be 
experienced. 
 
In the meantime DPS will ensure 
staff are aware of the need to keep 
noise to a minimum and I said that I 
would let her know immediately if 
any complaints received and will give 
as much detail as possible. 

25.09.2013 
Wednesday 
21:55 

Customer A 
Cameron 
House 

Loud patrons 
screaming shouting  

25.09.2013, 23:53 
Busy and late getting there. No noise 

21.09.2013 
Saturday 
21:55 

Customer A 
Cameron 
House 

Excessive noise 
coming from the Star 
pub, drunken 
shouting. This has 
been a persistent 
problem. Customer 

22.09.2013, 00:30 
Pub closed, no people outside, all 
tidy, lights off. Main road still closed 
- no traffic noise either. 

page 222



would not like a call 
back as he has had a 
long day. He would 
just like someone to 
investigate. This is a 
repeat complaint 

20.09.2013 
Friday 
21:50 

Customer A 
Cameron 
House 

Excessive noise 
coming from the Star 
pub, drunken 
shouting. This has 
been a persistent 
problem. Customer 
would not like a call 
back as he has had a 
long day. He would 
just like someone to 
investigate. Has said 
he is in contact with 
licensing regarding this 
pub. 

20.09.2013, 23:20 
Some voices audible in street. No 
one outside. All tidy and clean. Main 
road blocked diversion via Alitsen 
Road - ie no traffic noise. 

23.08.2013 
Friday 
23:11 

Customer A 
Cameron 
House 

group of youths 
outside the star pub 
drunk and screaming 
shouting etc 

24.08.2013, 00:41 
too late to visit and had other 
priority jobs 

16.10.2012 
Tuesday 
00:42 

Customer B 
Charlbert 
Street 

Lot of shouting from 
pub and from outside 
of the pub. 

16.10.2012, 01:19 
NO NOISE VISIT DUE TO NIGHT LONE 
WORKING (H&S REASONS) 

19.05.2012 
Tuesday 
19:31 

Customer C 
Charlbert 
Street 

Loud general pub 
noise also on streets 
outside pub 

No visit made 

 
 
    
   

 

page 223



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 The Wellington Club, 116A Knightsbridge, SW1
	2 Premier Inn, 90-104 Berwick Street, W1
	Licensing Sub-Committee Report
	CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING
	Appendix 5 - Data List.pdf
	Sheet1

	Appendix 1 - GF Plans.pdf
	3646-L1-001 [Ground Floor Licensing Plan]
	Viewport-GROUND B&W
	Viewport-BASEMENT LICENSE INFO-2
	Viewport-GROUND B&W-2


	Appendix 1 - Basement Plans.pdf
	3646-L1-002 [Basement Floor Licensing Plan]
	Viewport-BASEMENT B&W 
	Viewport-BASEMENT LICENSE INFO
	Viewport-BASEMENT B&W -2


	Premier Inn 90-104 Berwick Street W1 Part 2a
	Licensing Sub-Committee Report
	CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING
	Appendix 5 - Data List.pdf
	Sheet1

	Appendix 1 - GF Plans.pdf
	3646-L1-001 [Ground Floor Licensing Plan]
	Viewport-GROUND B&W
	Viewport-BASEMENT LICENSE INFO-2
	Viewport-GROUND B&W-2


	Appendix 1 - Basement Plans.pdf
	3646-L1-002 [Basement Floor Licensing Plan]
	Viewport-BASEMENT B&W 
	Viewport-BASEMENT LICENSE INFO
	Viewport-BASEMENT B&W -2



	Premier Inn 90-104 Berwick Street W1 Part 2b
	Licensing Sub-Committee Report
	CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING
	Appendix 5 - Data List.pdf
	Sheet1

	Appendix 1 - GF Plans.pdf
	3646-L1-001 [Ground Floor Licensing Plan]
	Viewport-GROUND B&W
	Viewport-BASEMENT LICENSE INFO-2
	Viewport-GROUND B&W-2


	Appendix 1 - Basement Plans.pdf
	3646-L1-002 [Basement Floor Licensing Plan]
	Viewport-BASEMENT B&W 
	Viewport-BASEMENT LICENSE INFO
	Viewport-BASEMENT B&W -2



	Premier Inn 90-104 Berwick Street W1 Part 3
	Licensing Sub-Committee Report
	CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING
	Appendix 5 - Data List.pdf
	Sheet1

	Appendix 1 - GF Plans.pdf
	3646-L1-001 [Ground Floor Licensing Plan]
	Viewport-GROUND B&W
	Viewport-BASEMENT LICENSE INFO-2
	Viewport-GROUND B&W-2


	Appendix 1 - Basement Plans.pdf
	3646-L1-002 [Basement Floor Licensing Plan]
	Viewport-BASEMENT B&W 
	Viewport-BASEMENT LICENSE INFO
	Viewport-BASEMENT B&W -2




	3 The Lexington, 34 Lexington Street, W1
	4 38 St John's Wood Terrace, NW8



